1374 P

# BYLAWS

OF

# EUCALYPTUS GROVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

A California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation

INW#1/EGBYL 12/17/84

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE	NO.
I	NAME; PRINCIPAL OFFICE; DEFINITIONS	. 1	
1.1	Name of Corporation		
1.2	Association Offices	. 1	
1.3	Definitions		
1.3		• •	
II	PURPOSE AND POWERS OF ASSOCIATION		
2.1	General Purpose	. 2	
2.2	Specific Purpose	. 2	
2.3	Powers of the Association	. 2	
III	MEMBERGUID IN MUE ACCOCTAMION	. 3	
	MEMBERSHIP IN THE ASSOCIATION		
3.1	Qualification		
3.2	Classes of Membership		
3.3	Voting Rights		
3.4	Approval by Classes		
3.5	Termination of Membership	. 4	
3.6	Suspension of Membership Rights	. 4	
3.7	Transfer of Memberships	• 5	
3.8	Proof of Membership		
3.9	Nonliability of Members		
	VERSENGE OF WEVERE	_	
IV	MEETINGS OF MEMBERS		
4.1	Place of Meetings		
4.2	Annual Meetings		
4.3	Special Meetings		
4.4	Notice of Meetings		
4.5	Voting Procedures	. 7	
4.6	Record Date	. 7	
4.7	Quorum Requirement	. 8	
4.8	Adjournment	. 8	
4.9	Proxies	. 8	
4.10	Absentee Ballots	. 9	
4.11	Order of Business		
4.12	Parliamentary Procedure		
4.13	Action without a Meeting		
V	NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	. 1	-
5.1	Authorized Number		
5.2	Term of Office		
5.3	Nominations		
5.4	Election of Directors		
5.5	Specially Elected Director		
5.6	Removal of a Director For Cause		
5.7	Removal of a Director Without Cause		
5.8	Vacancies	. 1	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont.)

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE NO	-
VI 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.9 6.10 6.11 6.12 6.13	BOARD OF DIRECTOR ACTIONS.  Powers of Directors.  Place of Meetings.  Organization Meeting  Other Regular Meetings  Special Meetings.  Notice of Special Meetings  Posting of Notices.  Quorum.  Waiver of Notice  Conduct of Meetings.  Adjournment.  Notice of Adjournment.  Action without a Meeting.	. 13 . 14 . 14 . 14 . 14 . 15 . 15 . 15 . 16	
VII 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9	OFFICERS OF THE ASSOCIATION.  Principal Officers	. 16 . 17 . 17 . 17 . 17 . 17 . 17	
VIII 8.1 8.2 8.3	COMPENSATION; INDEMNIFICATION OF AGENTS.  Compensation	. 19 . 19	
1X 9.1 9.2 9.3	RECORDS AND REPORTS	. 19 . 19	
X 10.1 10.2 10.3 10.4	FINANCIAL MATTERS		
XI 11.1 11.2	GENERAL PROVISIONS	. 23	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont.)

ARTICLE	TITLE	PA	GE NO.
11.3	Endorsement of Documents; Contracts	•	24
11.4	Construction and Definitions	•	24
11.5	Amendments	•	24
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY		26

#### BYLAWS

OF

#### EUCALYPTUS GROVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

# A California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation

#### ARTICLE I

#### NAME; PRINCIPAL OFFICE; DEFINITIONS

# 1.1 Name of Corporation

The name of this Corporation is EUCALYPTUS GROVE HOME-OWNERS ASSOCIATION (herein, the "Association"). The Association is organized under the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law.

#### 1.2 Association Offices

- 1.2.1 Principal Office. The Board of Directors shall designate the location of the principal executive office of the Association, which may be at any place within the County of Santa Barbara, State of California. The Board of Directors, in its discretion, may change the principal office from one location to another within said County.
- 1.2.2 Additional Offices. The Board of Directors may establish such branch or subordinate offices from time to time at such locations as it determines to be appropriate.

#### 1.3 Definitions

For purposes of these Bylaws, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below.

- 1.3.1 <u>Declaration</u>. "Declaration" means the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, and any amendments thereto, recorded in the Office of the Santa Barbara County Recorder and applicable to the development commonly known and referred to as The Grove or Tract 13,421.
- 1.3.2 Other Definitions. Each definition contained in Article I of the Declaration shall have the same meaning

INW#1/EGBYL 12/17/84 for purposes of these Bylaws as is set forth in the Declaration, and each such definition is made a part of these Bylaws as if set forth herein in full.

#### ARTICLE II

# PURPOSE AND POWERS OF ASSOCIATION

#### 2.1 General Purpose

The purpose of the Association generally shall be to engage in any lawful act or activity for which a corporation may be organized under the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law.

#### 2.2 Specific Purpose

The specific purpose of the Association shall be to conduct all business affairs of common interest to its members, including, without limitation, the operation and maintenance of common areas, the maintenance of buildings and other improvements, the payment of taxes, assessments, utilities and insurance premiums, and the enforcement of restrictions and rules pertaining to the development.

#### 2.3 Powers of the Association

To achieve its purposes, the Association shall have the power and authority:

- 2.3.1 To establish, fix and levy assessments as provided in the Declaration;
- 2.3.2 To establish, amend and enforce rules governing the use of the development owned in common by its members;
- 2.3.3 To commence actions to enforce or to enjoin the breach of the Articles, these Bylaws, the Declaration or the rules and regulations adopted by the Association; and
- 2.3.4 To employ a professional management firm or agent for the development as provided in Section 5.4.5 of the Declaration.
- 2.3.5 To exercise all other powers afforded to the Association pursuant to and subject to the limitations set forth in the Declaration.

#### ARTICLE III

#### MEMBERSHIP IN THE ASSOCIATION

### 3.1 Qualification

Each owner of a lot in the development (except those persons or entities owning lots solely as security for the payment of a debt or the performance of an obligation) shall be a member of the Association, but no owner shall hold more than one membership in the Association, even though such owner may own more than one lot.

# 3.2 Classes of Membership

- 3.2.1 <u>Initial Classes</u>. The Association initially shall have two (2) classes of voting memberships, consisting of the following:
- A. The Class A members shall consist of all owners of lots in the development, other than the Declarant named in the Declaration and any successor in interest to the Declarant.
- B. The Class B members shall consist of the Declarant named in the Declaration and any successor in interest to the Declarant.
- 3.2.2 Conversion of Class B Membership. The Class B membership shall forever cease and shall be converted to a Class A membership on the first to occur of the following events:
- A. When the total votes outstanding in the Class A membership equal the total votes outstanding in the Class B membership; or
- B. On the second anniversary of the date on which the final subdivision public report for the development is issued by the California Department of Real Estate.

#### 3.3 Voting Rights

- 3.3.1 Class A Members. Each Class A member shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each lot in which such member owns an interest. Should more than one Class A member own an interest in a single lot, the vote for such lot shall be exercised as such owners may determine among themselves, but in no case shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any one lot.
- 3.3.2 Class B Member. The Class B member shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each lot which it owns.

# 3.4 Approval by Classes

- 3.4.1 Subject to the provisions of Section 3.4.2, below, as long as two classes of members in the Association exist, no action by the Association that must have the prior approval of the Association members shall be deemed approved by the members unless approved by the appropriate percentage of both classes of members.
- 3.4.2 If any provision of the Governing Instruments requires Association action to be approved by a prescribed majority or percentage of members other than the Declarant, then (except for the enforcement of bonded obligations as provided in Section 5.5.7 of the Declaration) such action shall require the approval of the prescribed percentage of the Class A voting power and a bare majority of the Class B voting power.
- 3.4.3 Upon the first to occur of the conditions specified in Section 3.4.2, above, actions requiring the prior approval of the Association shall require the approval only of the Class A members; provided, however, that if any provision of the Governing Instruments requires Association action to be approved by a prescribed majority or percentage of members other than the Declarant, then (except for the enforcement of bonded obligations as provided in Section 5.5.7 of the Declaration) such action shall require the approval of a bare majority of the total voting power of the Association as well as the approval of the prescribed percentage of total voting power of members other than the Declarant.

# 3.5 Termination of Membership

Each owner shall remain a member of the Association until he no longer owns, or has an ownership interest in, any lot in the development, at which time his membership shall automatically cease. Membership shall survive the death, dissolution, merger or reorganization of any member.

#### 3.6 Suspension of Membership Rights

3.6.1 The membership rights, including voting rights, of any member of the Association may be suspended and/or monetary penalties may be assessed for any violation of the Declaration, the Articles or Bylaws of the Association or the Association Rules adopted by its Board of Directors; provided, however, that no such suspension of membership rights may exceed a period of thirty (30) days for any one violation, and no fine exceeding the sum of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) may be assessed for any one violation.

- 3.6.2 A member shall be entitled to appeal from any proposed fine or suspension in the manner provided by Section 5.6 of the Declaration.
- 3.6.3 A monetary penalty imposed by the Association as a disciplinary measure for failure of a member to comply with the governing instruments or as a means of reimbursing the Association for costs incurred by the Association in the repair of damage to common areas and facilities for which the member is allegedly responsible or in bringing the member and his lot in a compliance with the governing instrument is not an assessment which may become a lien against the member's lot.

# 3.7 Transfer of Memberships

Memberships in the Association may be transferred only in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.2.2 of the Declaration; an owner shall not be entitled to sever his interest in any lot from his membership in the Association and shall not be entitled to sever his lot and his membership from his undivided interest in the Common Area.

#### 3.8 Proof of Membership

No person may exercise any rights of membership in the Association until satisfactory proof of membership has been furnished to the Secretary. Such proof may consist of, without limitation, a copy of a duly recorded grant deed or a policy of title insurance showing such person to be the owner of an interest in a lot. Any such deed or title policy shall be conclusive in the absence of a conflicting claim based on a later deed or policy.

#### 3.9 Nonliability of Members

Except as may be provided in the Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law, no member of the Association shall, solely because of such membership, be personally liable for the debts, obligations or liabilities of the Association.

#### ARTICLE IV

# MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

#### 4.1 Place of Meetings

Meetings of the membership shall be held at a place within the development designated by the Board of Directors or at a meeting place designated by the Board of Directors

which is as close to the development as may be possible. Unless unusual conditions exist, meetings of the membership shall not be held outside the County of Santa Barbara.

# 4.2 Annual Meetings

The first meeting of the members shall be held at the time and in the manner provided in Section 4.4 of the Declaration. Subsequent annual meetings of members of the Association shall be held in each succeeding year within thirty (30) days before or after the anniversary date of the first annual meeting, on a day to be determined by the Board, which day shall not be a legal holiday.

#### 4.3 Special Meetings

Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by a majority of a quorum of the Board, or upon the written request of members representing at least five percent (5%) of the total voting power of the Association.

#### 4.4 Notice of Meetings

- 4.4.1 Time of Notice. Notice of all members meetings, annual or special, shall be given by personal delivery, or by first class mail, telegram or other means of written communication and shall be given not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days before the time of the meeting.
- 4.4.2 Contents of Notices. Notices of members meetings shall set forth the place, date, and hour of the meeting, and the nature of the business to be undertaken. Notices shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or the person authorized to call the meeting, and shall be transmitted to each member entitled to vote, addressed to the member's address last appearing at the record date on the books of the Association, or supplied by the member to the Association for the purpose of notice, and shall be given also to each secured lender requesting such notice at the address given by the secured lender for such purposes.
- 4.4.3 Time of Receipt. Mailed notices shall be deemed received forty-eight (48) hours after they are mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested; notice by telegram shall be deemed received twenty-four (24) hours after it is sent. Notices to members by personal delivery shall be deemed received upon delivery to any occupant of the member's residence who is over the age of twelve (12) years.

# 4.5 Voting Procedures

- 4.5.1 Members Entitled to Vote. Persons entitled to vote at any meeting of the members of the Association shall be those persons who are owners of record at a date fixed by the Board as the record date for the purpose of determining the members entitled to notice of any meeting of members.
- 4.5.2 Manner of Voting. Voting may be by voice, roll call or written ballot, as the members determine to be appropriate, except that any election of directors must be by secret written ballot.
- 4.5.3 Vote Required. Subject to the provisions of Sections 3.4 and 4.5.4 of these Bylaws, if a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power present at the meeting, entitled to vote and voting on any matter shall be the act of the members, unless the vote of a greater number is required by these Bylaws.
- 4.5.4 <u>Cumulative Voting</u>. The election and removal of directors on the Board shall be conducted by cumulative voting, as defined and prescribed in Section 7615 of the California Corporations Code. No member shall be entitled to cumulate votes for a candidate or candidates unless such candidate's name or candidate's names have been placed in nomination prior to the voting and the member has given notice at the meeting prior to the voting of the members intention to cumulate votes. If any one member has given such notice, all members may cumulate their votes for candidates in nomination.
- 4.5.5 Fractional Votes of Joint Owners. The voting rights relating to each lot may be exercised only on a unit basis and may not be exercised on a fractional basis. The exercise of voting rights by joint owners shall be effected in the manner prescribed in Section 4.3.5 of the Declaration, and if the joint owners of a lot are unable to agree among themselves as to how their voting rights shall be cast with respect to a particular matter, they shall forfeit their right to vote as to that matter.

#### 4.6 Record Date

For the purposes of determining which members are entitled to receive notice of any meeting, to vote, or to give consent to Association action without a meeting, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which shall not be more than sixty (60) nor fewer than ten (10) days before the date of the meeting.

- 4.6.1 Only members of record on the date so fixed shall be entitled to notice, to vote or to give consents, as the case may be.
- 4.6.2 Should the Board of Directors fail to fix a record date as provided by this Section 4.6, then the record date shall be that date prescribed by Section 7611 of the California Corporations Code.

#### 4.7 Quorum Requirement

The presence at any meeting in person or by proxy of members entitled to cast at least fifty percent (50%) of the total votes of all members of the Association shall constitute a quorum. If any meeting cannot be held because a quorum is not present, members representing a majority of the votes present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) days nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original meeting was called, at which adjourned meeting the quorum requirement shall be at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the total votes; provided, however, that if any such adjourned meeting is actually attended, in person or by proxy, by members holding or representing less than one-third (1/3) of the voting power of the Association membership, then the only matters that may be voted upon at such meeting are those matters notice of the general nature of which is given, in the manner specified in Section 4.4, above, not less than ten (10) nor more than ninety (90) days before the date of such meeting to each member who, on the record date for notice of the meeting, is entitled to vote thereat.

#### 4.8 Adjournment

Any meeting of members at which a quorum is present may be adjourned for any reason to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours nor more than thirty (30) days from the time of such meeting by members representing a majority of the votes present either in person or by proxy. If the time and place for the adjourned meeting is not fixed at the original meeting at which the adjournment is taken, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as provided in Section 4.4 of these Bylaws.

#### 4.9 Proxies

At all meetings of members each member may be present in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary of the Association prior to the commencement of the meeting. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease when the ownership interest or interests (that entitled a member to membership in the Association) cease. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11) months from the date thereof unless otherwise provided in the proxy, except that the maximum term of any proxy shall be three (3) years from the date of execution.

#### 4.10 Absentee Ballots

The Board may make such provisions as it considers necessary or desirable for absentee ballots.

#### 4.11 Order of Business

The order of business of all meetings of the members shall be as follows:

- 4.11.1 Roll call;
- 4.11.2 Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;
- 4.11.3 Reading of minutes of preceding meeting (or waiver of such reading);
  - 4.11.4 Reports of the Board and officers;
  - 4.11.5 Election of Directors, if any are to be elected;
  - 4.11.6 Unfinished business; and
  - 4.11.7 New business.

#### 4.12 Parliamentary Procedure

All questions of parliamentary procedure shall be decided in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order.

# 4.13 Action without a Meeting

Any action that may be taken at a meeting of the members may be taken without a meeting if authorized by a writing signed by all of the members who would be entitled to vote at a meeting and filed with the Secretary; provided, however, that a written ballot may not be authorized when the Directors are elected by cumulative voting pursuant to California Corporations Code § 7513.

#### ARTICLE V

#### NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

# 5.1 Authorized Number

The Board of Directors shall consist of three (3) directors, who need not be members of the Association.

#### 5.2 Term of Office

- 5.2.1 All directors shall be elected at the first annual meeting of the members for a term of one (1) year, to run concurrently. Thereafter, the term of office for each subsequently elected director shall be for two (2) years, to run concurrently.
- 5.2.2 If any annual meeting is not held or the directors are not elected at any annual meeting, they may be elected at any special meeting of the members held for that purpose.
- 5.2.3 Each director, including a director elected to fill a vacancy or elected at a special meeting of the members, shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which elected and until a successor has been elected and qualified.

#### 5.3 Nominations

- 5.3.1 Nomination for election to the Board shall be made by a nominating committee consisting of three (3) persons selected by the Board. The nominating committee shall consist of a chairman, who shall be a member of the Board, and two (2) other persons who shall either be members of the Association or representatives of the Declarant. Each member of the nominating committee shall be appointed by the Board to serve for a period of one year and vacancies in the committee shall be filled by the Board.
- 5.3.2 The nominating committee shall solicit and evaluate recommendations for candidates for the Board from the members and shall make as many nominations for election to the Board as it may, in its discretion, determine, but not less than the number of vacancies to be filled. Nominations may be made from among members or non-members. Nominations may also be made from the floor at each annual meeting at which an election of directors is held.

#### 5.4 Election of Directors

Election to the Board shall be by secret written ballot. At the election, the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to cast under the applicable provisions of these By-laws and the Declaration (and subject to cumulative voting and to the provisions respecting specially elected directors as are described therein). The candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall be deemed elected.

# 5.5 Specially Elected Director

- 5.5.1 As long as a majority of the voting power of the Association resides in the Declarant or its successors or assigns, or as long as there are two (2) outstanding classes of membership in the Association, twenty percent (20%) of the directors, but in no event less than one (1) of the directors (the "Representative-Director") shall be elected at a special election held immediately before the regular election of directors, or at a special meeting of the members called to elect a successor to a Representative-Director who has become unable or unwilling to serve as such.
- 5.5.2 At the duly constituted meeting of members at which a Representative-Director is to be elected, nominations for such director shall be made from the floor. When nominations have been closed, the special election shall take place. Neither the Declarant nor its successors or assigns shall have the right to participate in or vote in such special election (although its representatives may be present), and the candidate(s) receiving the highest number of votes, up to the number of Representative-Directors to be elected shall be deemed to be the Representative-Director, and, except for the initial term of the original Representative-Director, the term of office of any Representative-Director shall be the same as that of any other director.
- 5.5.3 Unless members (excluding the Declarant or its successors or assigns) holding a majority of all voting rights (excluding any voting rights held by the Declarant or its successors or assigns) assent by vote or written consent, no Representative-Director may be removed from office. In case of the death, resignation or removal of a Representative-Director, his successor shall be elected at a special meeting of members, and the provisions set forth in this Section 5.5 respecting the election of a Representative-Director shall apply to the election of a successor. Except as otherwise specifically provided, the provisions of these Bylaws and of the Articles and the Declaration applicable to

directors, including their election and removal, shall apply to any Representative-Director.

### 5.6 Removal of a Director for Cause

The Board may declare vacant the office of a director who has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of the court or who has been convicted of a felony.

### 5.7 Removal of a Director Without Cause

Unless the entire Board is removed from office by the vote of the Association members, an individual director shall not be removed prior to the expiration of his term of office if the number of votes cast against his removal is greater than the quotient arrived at by dividing the total number of votes that may be cast under the cumulative voting procedures by a divider equal to the sum of one (1) plus the authorized number of directors.

#### 5.8 Vacancies

- 5.8.1 Events Causing Vacancy. A vacancy on the Board shall be deemed to exist on the occurrence of any of the following events: (a) the death, resignation, or removal of a director; (b) the declaration by resolution of the Board of Directors of a vacancy caused by a director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court or convicted of a felony; (c) the vote of the members to remove a director as provided in Section 5.7 of these Bylaws; (d) an increase in the authorized number of directors; or (e) the failure of the members, at any meeting of members at which any director is to be elected, to elect the number of directors to be elected at such meeting.
- 5.8.2 Resignations. Any director of the Association may resign by giving written notice of resignation to the President, the Secretary or the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall be effective immediately, unless the notice specifies a later time for the resignation to become effective. If the resignation of a director is effective at a future time, the Board of Directors may elect a successor to take office when the resignation becomes effective.
- 5.8.3 Vacancies Filled by Directors. Vacancies on the Board, other than a vacancy created by the removal of a director, may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, whether or not less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, but a vacant position previously held by a Representative-Director specially elected as provided in

- Section 5.5, above, shall be filled only by the members as provided in Section 5.5.3 of these Bylaws.
- 5.8.4 Vacancies Filled by Members. The members may elect a director at any time to fill any vacancy not filled by the Board of Directors.
- 5.8.5 No Vacancy on Reduction in Size of Board. No reduction in the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director before the expiration of that director's term of office.

#### ARTICLE VI

# BOARD OF DIRECTOR ACTIONS

#### 6.1 Powers of Directors

- 6.1.1 General Powers. Subject to any limitations in the Declaration, the Articles or these Bylaws relating to actions required to be approved by the members, the business and affairs of the Association shall be managed, and all Association powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board of Directors.
- 6.1.2 <u>Specific Powers</u>. Without prejudice to its general powers, and subject to the foregoing limitations, the directors shall have the power and duty:
- A. To manage the affairs of the Association between meetings of its members;
- B. To adopt policies and operating procedures to achieve the purposes and objectives of the Association as set forth in the Declaration and these Bylaws;
- C. To supervise the operation of the committees of the Association and to assist their members and chairpersons in the performance of their functions;
- D. To approve the disbursement of funds of and the payment of expenses incurred by the Association; and
- E. To establish an operating budget for the Assocation and, subject to the approval rights of the members as set forth in the Declaration, to levy assessments on the members of the Association.

#### 6.2 Place of Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held within the development. Special meetings of the Board shall be held at any place within the County of Santa Barbara that has been designated in the notice of the meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 6.2, a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be valid if held at any place consented to in writing by all of the directors, either before or after the meeting. If such consents are given, they shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting.

#### 6.3 Organization Meeting

As soon as practicable after each annual meeting of the members, the Board of Directors shall hold a regular meeting for the purpose of organizing the Board and transacting such other business as may be appropriate. Notice of the organization meeting shall be given as provided in Section 6.6 of these By-laws.

#### 6.4 Other Regular Meetings

Other regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least semi-annually without call at such place within the development and at such dates as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board.

# 6.5 Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board of Directors for any purpose may be called at anytime by the President or by any two (2) directors.

#### 6.6 Notice of Special Meetings

- 6.6.1 Method. Notice of the time and place of a special meeting shall be given to each director by one of the following methods: (1) by personal delivery of written notice; (2) by first-class mail, postage paid; (3) by telephone communication, either directly to the director or to a person at the director's office who would reasonably be expected to communicate such notice promptly to the director; or (4) by telegram, charges prepaid. All such notices shall be given or sent to the director's address or telephone number as shown on the records of the Association.
- 6.6.2 <u>Time</u>. Notices sent by first class mail shall be deposited into the United States mails at least seventy-two (72) hours before the time set for the meeting. Notices

given by personal delivery, telephone or telegraph shall be delivered, telephoned or given to the telegraph company at least seventy-two (72) hours before the time set for the meeting.

6.6.3 Contents. Notice of a special meeting shall state the time and place for the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered.

### 6.7 Posting of Notices

Notice of the time and place of all regular and special meetings of the Board shall be prominently posted in the development at a place customarily utilized for the posting of notices to the members of the Association, and shall be communicated to the directors at least four (4) days prior to any regular meeting and at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to any special meeting.

#### 6.8 Quorum

A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 6.11 of this Article. Unless a larger vote is required by these Bylaws, every act or decision done or taken by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, and unless a greater vote is required by these Bylaws, any action taken that is approved by at least of a majority of the required quorum for that meeting shall constitute the act of the Board of Directors.

#### 6.9 Waiver of Notice

Any director who attends a meeting without protesting the lack of adequate notice before or at the commencement of the meeting shall be deemed to have received proper notice of the meeting. The transactions of any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if (a) a quorum is present, and (b) either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the Association records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

#### 6.10 Conduct of Meetings

Regular and special meetings of the Board shall be open to all members of the Association, but members who are not directors may not participate in any deliberation or discussion unless expressly authorized by the vote of a majority of the Board. The Board may, with the approval of a majority of a quorum of the Board, adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote on personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, and other business of a similar or otherwise sensitive nature. The nature of any such business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in open session.

#### 6.11 Adjournment

A majority of the directors present, whether or not consituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place.

#### 6.12 Notice of Adjournment

Notice of the time and place for the reconvening of an adjourned meeting need not be given unless the meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, in which case personal notice of the time and place shall be given to those directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment before the time for reconvening the adjourned meeting.

#### 6.13 Action without a Meeting

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board, individually or collectively, consent in writing to that action. Any such action by written consent shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote of the Board and shall be filed with the minutes of its proceedings; a written explanation of any such action shall be posted as provided in Section 6.7, above, within three (3) days after all such consents have been obtained.

#### ARTICLE VII

#### OFFICERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

#### 7.1 Principal Officers

The principal officers of the Association shall be a President and a Vice President, who shall at all times be

members of the Board, and a Secretary and a Treasurer, who may but need not be members of the Board. The Board may appoint such additional officers as it determines to be appropriate as provided in Section 7.4, below.

#### 7.2 Election of Officers

The election of officers shall take place at the organizational meeting of the Board following each annual meeting of the members.

#### 7.3 Term of Office

Each officer of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for a term of one (1) year and until his successor is elected and qualified (unless he resigns, is removed or becomes otherwise disqualified to serve).

#### 7.4 Subordinate Officers

The Board of Directors may appoint any other subordinate officers that the business of the Association may require, each of whom shall have the title, hold office for the period, have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

#### 7.5 Resignation and Removal

Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President, or the Secretary. The resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified in the notice, and, unless otherwise requested by the notice, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

#### 7.6 Vacancies

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal or any other cause may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to fill such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.

#### 7.7 Multiple Offices

The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. Otherwise, no person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of subordinate offices created under Section 7.4 of these Bylaws.

# 7.8 Duties of Officers

The duties of the officers shall be as follows:

- 7.8.1 President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association and shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board. The President shall have all of the general powers and duties customarily vested in the office of president of a corporation, shall ensure that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out, and shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds, and other written instruments on behalf of the Association.
- 7.8.2 Vice President. The Vice President shall act in place of the President in case of his absence, or his inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.
- 7.8.3 Secretary. The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members, shall maintain the records of Association committees, shall serve notices of meetings of the Board and of the members, shall keep appropriate current records showing the members of the Association and their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.
- 7.8.4 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all money paid to or collected by the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board, shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes of the Association, shall keep proper books of account, shall cause an annual financial report reflecting the income and expenditures of the Association during the most recently ended fiscal year to be prepared and distributed to each member within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of such fiscal year, and shall cause an annual budget to be prepared and presented to each member not less than sixty (60) days before the beginning of each fiscal year.

#### 7.9 Committees

The Board shall appoint a nominating committee as provided in these Bylaws, an Architectural Control Committee as provided by the Declaration, and may appoint such other standing and ad hoc committees which may be comprised of directors, members or both as it deems appropriate to carry

out its purposes, and may prescribe the duties of each such committee. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all such committees.

#### ARTICLE VIII

#### COMPENSATION; INDEMNIFICATION OF AGENTS

#### 8.1 Compensation

No director, officer or committee member shall receive any compensation for any service he may render to the Association without the prior approval of the members, but any such agent shall be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by him on behalf of the Association in the performance of his duties.

#### 8.2 Duty to Indemnify

The Association shall indemnify any director, officer, committee member or other representative, employee or agent of the Association in the manner and to the extent provided in Section 317 of the California General Corporation Law.

#### 8.3 Liability Insurance

The Association shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any of its directors, officers, committee members, representatives, employees or agents insuring against liability asserted against or incurred by any such person in such capacity, whether or not the Association would be empowered to indemnify them under the provisions of this Article VIII.

#### ARTICLE IX

## BOOKS AND RECORDS

#### 9.1 Membership Register

The Association shall keep in written form (or in form capable of being converted into writing) a membership register containing the name, address, and class of each member.

#### 9.2 Maintenance of Association Records

The Association's membership registers, accounting books and records, and minutes of proceedings of the members

and the Board of Directors and any committees of the Board of Directors shall be kept and maintained at the principal office of the Association or at such other place as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

#### 9.3 Inspection of Association Records

- 9.3.1 Rights of Members. Any membership registers, accounting books and records and minutes of meetings of the members, the Board and the committees of the Board of the Association shall be made available for inspection and copying by any member of the Association, or his duly-appointed representative or mortgagee, at any reasonable time and for a purpose reasonably related to his interest as a member, at the office of the Association or at such other place within the development as the Board prescribes. Such right of inspection shall include the right to make extracts and copies of documents.
- 9.3.2 <u>Inspection Rules</u>. The Board shall establish by resolution reasonable rules with respect to:
- A. Notice to be given to the custodian of the records of the Association by the member, representative or mortgagee desiring to make an inspection;
- B. Hours and days of the week when an inspection may be made by a member, representative or mortgagee; and
- C. Payment of the cost of reproducing copies of documents requested by a member or by a representative or mortgagee.
- 9.3.3 Rights of Directors. Every director of the Association shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records and documents of the Association and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Association. The right of inspection by a director shall include the right to make extracts and copies of documents.

#### ARTICLE X

#### FINANCIAL MATTERS

#### 10.1 Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Association shall be a calendar year unless a different fiscal year is adopted by the members at a duly constituted meeting.

#### 10.2 Budgets and Financial Statements

The following financial information shall be regularly prepared and distributed to all members, regardless of the number of members or the amount of the assets of the Association.

- 10.2.1 <u>Budget</u>. A budget for each Fiscal Year, consisting of at least the following information, shall be distributed not less than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of the Fiscal Yeac.
- A. Estimated revenue and expense on an accrual basis.
- B. The amount of the total cash reserves of the Association currently available for replacement or major repair of common facilities and for contingencies.
- C. An itemized estimate of the remaining useful life of and the methods of funding to defray repair, replacement or additions to major components of the Common Areas and facilities for which the Association is responsible.
- D. A general statement setting forth the procedures used in the calculation and establishment of reserves to defray the costs of repair, replacement or additions to major components of the Common Areas and facilities for which the Association is responsible.
- E. A statement of the Association's policies and practices in enforcing its remedies against members for defaults and the payment of regular and special assessments, including the recording and foreclosing of liens against members' Lots.
- Balance Sheet, dated as of an accounting date which is the last day of the month closest in time to six months from the date of closing of the first sale of a Lot in the development, and an Operating Statement for the period beginning with the date of the first closing and ending as of such accounting date, shall be distributed to each of the members within sixty (60) days after such accounting date. The Operating Statement shall include a schedule of assessments received and receivable, identified by the Lot number and the name of the owner or other entity assessed.
- 10.2.3 Annual Report. An Annual Report for the Association as of the end of each Fiscal Year of the Association shall be distributed to each member within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of each such Fiscal Year.

- A. The Association's Annual Report shall contain at least the following:
- (1) A Balance Sheet as of the end of the Fiscal Year;
  - (2) An Income Statement for the Fiscal Year;
- (3) A Statement of Change in Financial Position for the Fiscal Year;
- (4) A statement of the location at which the names and addresses of the current members are maintained; and
- (5) A brief description of any transaction between the Association and a party in interest, or any indemnification by the Association of its agents, in the manner and to the extent required by Section 8322 of the California Non-Profit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law.
- B. Preparation by Independent Accountant. In any Fiscal Year in which the gross receipts of the Association exceed Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars (\$75,000), the Financial Statements of the Association (other than the Balance Sheet and Income Statement prepared pursuant to Section 10.2.2, above) shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles by an independent public accountant licensed by the California State Board of Accountancy, and a copy of such accountant's report shall be included in the Annual Report.
- C. Officer's Certificate. If the Association's Annual Report is not required by paragraph B, above, to be accompanied by the report of the Association's independent public accountant, then the Annual Report shall be accompanied by the Certificate of an elected officer of the Association that the Financial Statements were prepared from the books and records of the Association without independent audit or review.

#### 10.3 Assessments

- 10.3.1 General and Special Assessments. Each of the Association's members shall be subject to general and special assessments to defray common expenses of the Association for each fiscal year, as established pursuant to Article VII of the Declaration.
- 10.3.2 Rate of Assessment. Regular and special assessments shall be fixed and levied for each lot in the

development in the manner prescribed by Section 7.3 of the Declaration.

- 10.3.3 Notice; Due Dates. A single ten (10) days' prior written notice of each general and special assessment shall be given to each member subject to assessment, which notice shall specify the due dates of such assessments.
- 10.3.4 Collection of Assessments. The collection of assessments shall be enforced by the Board of Directors on behalf of the Association in the manner provided by Article VIII of the Declaration.

#### 10.4 Reserves

Any amounts collected by or paid to the Association in excess of operational needs shall be set aside as reserves for future financial needs in the manner described in the Declaration and shall be deposited into insured, interest-bearing accounts. These sums may include amounts which are collected from owners through purchase escrows and which represent capital contribution by members to the Association.

#### 10.5 Deposit of Funds

Any funds of the Association in excess of its immediate cash requirements may be deposited in (a) federally insured savings accounts; (b) certificates of deposit; (c) deposits in commercial banks or savings institutions; (d) government securities; and/or (e) other short-term investment securities, including unsecured commercial paper and money market funds.

#### ARTICLE XI

#### GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 11.1 Conflicting Provisions

In case of any conflict between any provisions of the Declaration and these Bylaws, the provisions of the Declaration shall control.

## 11.2 Incorporation of the Declaration

Any reference made in these Bylaws to the Declaration is intended to incorporate the referenced provision into these Bylaws as though set forth in full, as well as any other provision of the Declaration which explains, implements or modifies the referenced provision.

#### 11.3 Endorsement of Documents; Contracts

Subject to the provisions of applicable law, any mortgage, contract, conveyance, or other instrument in Writing and any assignment or endorsement thereof executed or entered into between the corporation and any other person, when signed by the President, or any Vice President and the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the Treasurer, or any Assistant Treasurer of the Association shall be valid and binding on the Association in the absence of actual knowledge on the part of the other person that the signing officers had no authority to execute the same. Any such instruments may be signed by any person or persons and in such manner as from time to time shall be determined by the Board, and, unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Association by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or amount.

#### 11.4 Construction and Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions contained in the General Provisions of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law and in the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law shall govern the construction of these Bylaws.

#### 11.5 Amendments

- 11.5.1 Two Classes. At any time when the Association has two classes of voting members, these Bylaws may be amended only with the vote or written consent of members representing a majority of the voting power of each class of membership in the Association.
- 11.5.2 One Class. When this Association ceases to have two classes of voting members due to the conversion of Class B membership to Class A membership as provided in the Declaration, these Bylaws may be amended only with the vote or written consent of members representing a majority of the voting power of the Association and a majority of the voting power residing in members other than the Declarant.
- 11.5.3 Greater Than Majority Votes. The foregoing provisions of this Section 11.5 are not intended to limit the percentage of the voting power of the Association or of each voting class necessary to amend a specific provision in these Bylaws when the specific provision requires a different percentage of affirmative votes. If more than a majority of the voting power is required by any specific provision or if approval of each voting class is required, the specific provision shall control.

11.5.4 Compliance with Law. The adoption of any amendment to these Bylaws must comply with the provisions of California Business and Professions Code Section 11018.7 to the extent that such section may be applicable.

#### CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

OF

#### EUCALYPTUS GROVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

The undersigned, being the Secretary of the EUCALYPTUS GROVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, does hereby certify that:

- l. He is now and at all relevant times mentioned herein has been been the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Eucalyptus Grove Homeowners Association, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation;
- 2. That there is attached hereto to this Certificate a true and correct copy of the By-laws of said Association; and

				and day	
		<del></del>	Secre	tary	<del></del>
	of the Association	of the Association on this	of the Association on this, 19	of the Association on this, 19	

(SEAL)

# AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS EUCALYPTUS GROVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

As delineated in ARTICLE XI, entitled GENERAL PROVISIONS, paragraph 11.5, Amendments, Page 24 of The Eucalyptus Grove Homeowners' Association Bylaws, the owners by written ballot have voted (69% -- 123 signatures filed with the Board of Directors) to add the following amendment effective June 1, 1989:

ARTICLE XII entitled ASSOCIATION RULES shall be added to the bylaws as pages 25(a) through 25(e) as follows:

#### ARTICLE XII

#### **ASSOCIATION RULES**

1. PARKING - Parking in any of the red zones marked FIRE LANE TOW AWAY is illegal at any time. Any cars parked in a red zone are subject to being towed 24 hours a day. The same applies to cars parked in front of the trash bins and to cars that are double-parked. The tow truck operator makes random sweeps to find illegally parked cars on his own initiative. The tow truck is also requested when the security patrol sees an illegally parked vehicle and when any Grove resident asks that a vehicle to be towed via Bartlein & Co.

There have been instances when a car was hooked onto the tow truck while the owner was unloading groceries. Parking in a red zone for a few minutes while unloading should not result in being towed, and the tow company has been so advised. It is a good idea, however, to make sure that the tow truck driver is aware of the unloading, and the best way to do that is to not leave the car unattended.

Also, those of you who park motorcycles in the unassigned spots should recognize that these spots are large enough for two motorcycles. Please double up to make as many spaces as possible available for cars. Failure to cooperate may result in a ban on motorcycles in the Phase I and II unassigned parking areas. Since motorcycle stands tend to gouge the asphalt, a plate of some kind should be used to prevent this damage.

- A. PARKING ON HOLLISTER The Board has received numerous complaints from residents concerning the practice of parking in the striped area to the right of the exit gate. Vehicles parked in this area block the view of those exiting, making it difficult and dangerous to pull out on Hollister. The CHP has been asked to ticket such vehicles since it is plainly marked as a "NO Parking Anytime" zone. Residents are encouraged to call the CHP to request ticketing if they see violations (The CHP responds more rapidly to multiple complaints.)
- B. PARKING UNREGISTERED VEHICLES At a Board meeting, a motion was passed making it generally illegal to park unregistered vehicles in the Grove. If you are responsible for an unregistered vehicle, please either register or remove it as quickly as possible. Since we have no means of identifying and

individually notifying the owner of an unregistered vehicle, please be aware that this may be your only notice of this policy. Also be aware that your vehicle may be towed and that unregistered vehicles become the property of the towing company. The towing company then recovers it's costs by disposing of the vehicle. The Board can and will make special arrangements for residents on extended trips who may have let their registrations expire while they were gone. Any unregistered vehicles for which special arrangements have not been made will be stickered and towed a few days later.

- C. PARKING NON-VEHICLES AND UNAUTHORIZED VEHICLES The covered parking areas are for parking authorized vehicles only. Storing other objects, such as boxes, furniture, etc, is not permitted. Unauthorized vehicles; which include recreation vehicles (RV's), campers, boat trailers, and jet-ski trailers; may not be parked anywhere in the complex.
- D. ASSIGNED VS. UNASSIGNED PARKING Each of the 179 units in the Grove has been assigned one covered parking spot that is marked with the unit number. Also, 159 uncovered, unassigned parking areas are available for the exclusive use of Grove residents. The total number of unassigned parking areas appears to be adequate, but the distribution of those spaces is, at best, unfortunate. Phase I and II don't have nearly enough spaces and Phase III has more than enough. For those who live in Phase I or II, the policy regarding unassigned spaces is very simple. They are available on a first-come-first-served basis. When they are all gone, the only way to ensure that you won't be towed is to park in the Phase III unassigned area and walk back.
- 2. POOL RULES GENERAL The following rules and regulations are for the purpose of establishing equitable guidelines on the common use and care of the pool, sauna, spa and adjoining areas. Individual owners, tenants, their dependents, and their guests are responsible for following these rules and regulations as established by duly elected members of the Board of Directors.
- A. HOURS OF OPERATION The pool, spa, sauna, and adjoining areas will be open seven days a week (Sunday Saturday) during the following hours:

Sunday - Thursday 7 AM to 10 PM Friday - Saturday 7 AM to 11 PM

Reserved Hours. For those who wish to pursue a consistent program to exercise in the swimming pool, the following hours are available:

Daily 7 AM to 8:30 PM

- B. USE AND OCCUPANCY All resident Grove owners, tenants, and their dependents are entitled to the use of the pool area and facilities. The following restrictions apply to the use of the pool and adjoining facilities.
  - 1. GUESTS. Guests are limited to two for each individual occupant. For example, a household of three persons may invite up to six guests for use of the pool, spa, sauna and adjoining facilities. No more than two guests are allowed for each household member. Guests must be accompanied by a resident at all times.

- 2. GLASS. At no time is glass of any form or purpose allowed in the pool area.
- 3. CARE. All owners, tenants, dependents, and guests are encouraged to maintain the pool and its adjoining facilities in a clean and uncluttered condition.

Every effort should be made to remove all materials that were brought to the area for personal use and consumption. Treat this pool as if it were your own, because it is.

- 4. REPORTING DAMAGE OR MAINTENANCE NEEDS. All pool-area users are encouraged to report the need for damage repair or maintenance needs as soon as it is noticed. If urgent repairs are needed, please contact Bartlein & Co. For routine problems, please use the Suggestion Box.
- 5. REQUESTING SERVICES AND/OR MATERIALS. All perceived needs for improvement of pool area maintenance, services, and materials (e.g., chaise lounges, deck chairs, ect.) should be communicated in the same manner as above.
- C. IMPROPER USE OF POOL A common source of complaints has been parties in the pool area, sometimes extending after the posted hours. Residents should be aware that it is a violation of the Bylaws (Article 10.1) to have more than two guests in the pool area, and such guests must be accompanied at all times by the responsible resident. The Bylaws and the Pool Rules both prohibit the use of glass anywhere in the pool area. Also prohibited are kegs of beer (Article 5). Residents bothered by loud parties in the pool area or elsewhere in the complex are encouraged to call the Sheriff's Department on 911. The Sheriff's Department has been very cooperative in this regard, so don't hesitate to use this service when your right to the "peaceful enjoyment of your unit" is violated.
- D. COMBINATIONS The combinations to the locks in the restrooms in the pool area are the same as that for the Phase I weight room. Press II and IV simultaneously, then III.
- 3. WEIGHT ROOM The Board had an acoustic ceiling installed in the weight room in an attempt to reduce the noise level in the unit above the weight room. Please cooperate by not playing loud music and not dropping weights. The fan should only be turned on in case of extreme heat. Normally, with the door open, the fan is not needed, and leaving if off will contribute greatly to the neighbors' peace and quiet. Because of the limited space available, residents are allowed no more than one accompanied guest in the weight room.
- 4. PORCH/PATIO GUIDELINES In the effort to preserve the attractive appearance of our complex, all occupants should give attention to the following guidelines for porches, patios, and balconies. Residents should also familiarize themselves with related items on pp. 9 thru 11 of the Grove's C.C. & R.'s
  - A. FURNITURE Any furniture present should be "patio-type" and consistent with the general tone of the complex. No exterior areas should be used for storage of excess furniture, equipment, or items that are not suited for patios.

-25(c)-

- B. PLANTS A number of units have potted plants and small bushes. It is important that the "care and feeding" of these plants be a priority. Those plants that are exhausted or growing voluminously should be cultivated properly. Plants may not be placed on the railings of those units that have flat railings because water collects under the pot and rots the wood. Plants may not be placed in the common area.
- C. BICYCLES & MISC. Bicycles and small miscellaneous items (i.e. BBQ grills) should be kept in an orderly arrangement. Bicycles may not be stored in the pathways between units or in the planted areas.
- D. CLOTHES LINES Towels, rugs, and clothing should not be hung on porch railings. Clothes lines and racks for drying articles of clothing are not permitted. Each unit has been equipped with facilities for a dryer, which should be used for that purpose.
- E. EXTERNAL MAINTENANCE AND MODIFICATIONS Exterior areas, even those provided for the exclusive use of the associated residents, are generally considered part of the common area. That is, the painted surfaces are maintained, for the most part by the Association. An exception to this rule applies to the patio or deck surfaces that are for the exclusive use of the associated residents. Maintenance of these patio and deck surfaces is the associated homeowner's responsibility.

In order to maintain a uniform appearance in the Grove, any modifications to a porch or patio must have prior approval by the Board. Certain latticework privacy screens have been approved for some patios, but each such project requires individual approval. If you plan a modification of any kind, put a written description of the proposed change in the Suggestion Box, and the Board will act on the request at the next meeting and send you written notification of the disposition.

- F. REMEMBER While the items that you store on your patio may be out of your sight, your neighbors have to see them every time they look out their windows. If everyone will cooperate with these guidelines the few "eyesores" that still persist will soon be eliminated.
- 5. TRASH DISPOSAL The trash bin near the Phase II mailbox is inadequate for the number of people who would like to use it. If this single bin is full, the double bin toward the railroad track should be used rather than cause the single bin to overflow. The condition of all bins would be improved if we break down cardboard cartons, don't throw trash bags over the wall hoping they'll go in (they seldom do), and put wet garbage in plastic bags to keep the odors down.
- 6. REAL ESTATE SIGNS A policy on real estate signs was established by the Board at a recent meeting and is as follows. "A small For Rent or For Sale" sign may be placed in one window of the affected unit. The sign should be no larger than one window pane. No other, semi-permanent sign of any size may be placed inside or outside the unit. During the time that an Open House is in effect, it is permissible to have signs placed in the grass on Hollister and elsewhere within the complex as long as they are removed as soon as the Open House is over.

- 7. SCREEN DOORS APPROVED The Board has voted to allow any screen door that is kept in good repair and painted white to be installed at the Grove.
- 8. CAR WASH A facility for washing cars has been provided in the Phase III parking area. Please use the water sparingly and return the hose to an orderly condition when through. No other common-area faucets may be used for washing cars, and no common-area faucets may be used for cleaning carpets, or other personal use.
- 9. RENTER ID'S A number of homeowners have failed to comply with the C.C. & R.'s and Bylaw requirements, that all renters be identified to Bartlein & Co. We know that the common-area facilities are being used by non-residents. But when our list of renters is incomplete, it its difficult to confirm residency claims when such persons are challenged. If you have renters living in your unit, please make sure that Bartlein has all their names and phone numbers.
- 10. YARD SALES Yard sales and any other use of common-area facilities for commercial purposes are not allowed at the Grove.
- 11. PLAYING ON UNPAVED COMMON AREAS The creek beds and associated banks are not a playground. Use of these areas by children and others causes damage to the plantings and should be avoided.
- NOTE The playground behind the Ellwood School has excellent facilities and is available for public use during non-school hours.

#### CERTIFICATION OF SECRETARY:

The undersigned, being the Secretary of The Eucalyptus Grove Homeowners Association, does hereby certify that:

- 1. He is now and at all relevant times mentioned herein has been the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Eucalyptus Grove Homeowners Association, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation;
- 2. That the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the amendment to the By-Laws of said Association which were duly adopted by an affirmative vote of 63% (123 units) of the owners of record of said Association.

IN WITNESS	WHEREOF,	I	have	hereunto	set	my	hand	and	the	official	seal	of	the
Association	on this	_6	74	_day of <sub>s</sub>	De	Cer	nber	_	_, 1	1989.			

Thomas Pagano,

(SEAL)

# AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS EUCALYPTUS GROVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

As delineated in ARTICLE XI, entitled GENERAL PROVISIONS, paragraph 11.5, Amendments, Page 24 of The Eucalyptus Grove Homeowners' Association Bylaws, the owners by written ballot have voted (54% -- 96 affirmative signatures filed with the Board of Directors) to add the following amendment effective January 1, 1990:

ARTICLE XIII entitled OCCUPANCY RESTRICTIONS shall be added to the bylaws as pages 25(f) and 25(g) as follows:

#### ARTICLE XIII

# **OCCUPANCY RESTRICTIONS**

Whereas, many insurance companies now require that a majority of condominium units be occupied by owners in order for the condominium association to obtain coverage;

And, whereas, most mortgage lenders require a high percentage of owner occupied units in a condominium association before lending;

The association has voted to require that each unit must have in residence at least one owner of record; and, in the event an owner is not in residence, the unit must remain vacant.

This provision shall become effective <u>JANUARY</u> 1, 1990; all owners of record prior to this date shall be exempted from said provision.

The intent of this article is to require occupancy by owners for all units transferred after the above date.

"Owner of record" is defined as an individual, corporation, trust, estate, or other legal entity empowered to own real estate in the State of California which holds legal or constructive title as evidenced by a deed or other conveyance on record at the Santa Barbara County Recorder's office. In the event the owner is a corporation, the unit must have in residence an individual owning at least 25% of the voting stock of the corporation. In the event the owner is a trust, the unit must have in residence an individual who is a beneficiary of the trust. In the event the owner is an estate, the unit must

have in residence an individual who is an heir to the estate. In the event the owner is another legal entity, the unit must have in residence an individual who has a majority ownership or other control of that legal entity.

"Residence" shall be defined as occupying the unit for at least 90 days during each calendar year.

#### **CERTIFICATION OF SECRETARY:**

The undersigned, being the Secretary of The Eucalyptus Gove Homeowners Association, does hereby certify that:

- 1. He is now and at all relevant times mentioned herein has been the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Eucalyptus Gove Homeowners Association, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation;
- 2. That the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the amendment to the By-Laws of said Association which were duly adopted by an affirmative vote of 54% (96 units) of the owners of record of said Association.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and the official seal of the Association on this  $6^{73}$  day of  $\underline{\underline{December}}$ , 1989.

Thomas Pagano, Secretary

(SEAL)

After Recording, Return to: Eucalyptus Grove Owner's Assoc. C/o Bartlein & Company, Inc. 3944 State St., Suite #200 Santa Barbara, CA 93105

# AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS OF EUCALYPTUS GROVE OWNERS ASSOCIATION

WHEREAS Pursuant to the provisions of the Declarations of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions recorded on August 1, 1985 as Document #1985-040003 and the Bylaws recorded on August 5, 1991 as Document #91-051345 in the Office of the County Recorder, County of Santa Barbara, California, and Amendments thereto, and pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of the EUCALYPTUS GROVE OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, said Association (hereinafter referred to as the "Association") has voted to amend said Bylaws;

**NOW THEREFORE**, the Owners, by written ballot with 108 affirmative votes representing 60% of those eligible to vote, have amended Article V, Section 5.1 entitled "Authorized Number" of the Eucalyptus Grove Owner's Association Bylaws effective August 1, 2004, to read as follows:

Section 5.1. Authorized Number. The Board of Directors shall consist of five (5) directors, who are owners and members of the Association.

The Association is further described as a condominium project located in the City of Goleta, County of Santa Barbara, State of California, described as follows:

Lots 1, 2, and 3 of Tract Map 13,421 in the County of Santa Barbara, State of California, according to the map thereof filed in Book 127, pages 55 & 56 of Maps in the Office of the Recorder of said County.

#### **CERTIFICATION OF SECRETARY:**

The undersigned, being the Secretary of the Eucalyptus Grove Owners' Association, does hereby certify that:

 She is now and at all relevant times mentioned herein has been the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Eucalyptus Grove Owners' Association, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation; That the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the amendment to the By-Laws of said Association which was duly adopted by an affirmative vote of 60% (108 units) of the owners of record of said Association.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on this 12th day of August, 2004.

Cathy Legra Secretary

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

**COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA** 

On HUGUST 12, 204, before me, ANITA L. LESKI, NOTARY, PUBLIC personally appeared CATHY LEYVA,

personally known to me

-- OR --

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence

to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he she executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER: CORPORATE OFFICER: SECRETARY

SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: EUCALYPTUS GROV OWNERS' ASSOCIATION

WITNESS my hand and official seal

ary Public

Page 2 of 2

